
Nassau County Industrial Development Agency (“IDA”) 

Agenda 

May 15, 2025 at 6:45 p.m. 

I. Board Roll Call/Call to Order 
 
II. Chair Report 
 
III. CEO Report 

 
IV. Public Comment Period 

 
V. Existing Business and Discussion 

 
A. Approval Resolutions 

i.  NONE 

 
B. Preliminary Resolutions 
 

i.   NONE 

C.  Discussion 

       i.     PARIS  
 

D. Consent Resolutions 

i. Cox and Co. 
ii.     EB Senior Housing at Uniondale LLC 
iii. Lunar Module Park LLC 
 

 
VI. New Business 

 A.   Preliminary Resolution 

                    i.  NONE 

VII. Committee Reports 

VIII. Other Business 

A. Minutes 

i.      Approval of April 22, 2025 Minutes 

 B.   Other Resolutions 

i.      Resolution Authorizing a Payment Pursuant to the Employee Benefits Handbook 
 



 
IX.  Bills and Communications 
 
X.             Treasurer’s Report 

XI.                    Announcements  

XII.                   Adjournment 



Cox & Co. Amendment Resolution 
 

 A regular meeting of the Nassau County Industrial Development Agency (the 
“Agency”) was convened in public session at the Theodore Roosevelt Executive & Legislative 
Building, Legislative Chambers, 1550 Franklin Avenue, Mineola, Nassau County, New York, on 
May 15, 2025, at 6:45 p.m., local time. 

The meeting was called to order by the ______, upon roll being called, the following 
members of the Agency were:  

PRESENT: 

William H. Rockensies Chair 
John Coumatos Treasurer  
Raymond Pinto Secretary/Asst. Treasurer 
Marissa Brown Asst. Secretary 
Reginald A. Spinello Member 
Marco Troiano Member 
Joseph Manzella Member 

 

NOT PRESENT: 

 

 

THE FOLLOWING ADDITIONAL PERSONS WERE PRESENT: 
 

Sheldon L. Shrenkel Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director 
Anne LaMorte  Chief Financial Officer 
Colleen Pereira Administrative Director 
Stephanie Alfano Temporary Administrative Assistant 
Hon. Anthony Marano General Counsel 
Paul O’Brien Bond/Transaction Counsel 

 

The attached resolution no. 2025-__ was offered by ________, seconded by ________.   

    



Resolution No. 2025 - __ 
 

RESOLUTION TAKING ACTION WITH RESPECT TO A CERTAIN 
PROJECT FOR COX & COMPANY, INC., AND OTHER MATTERS IN 

CONNECTION THEREWITH 
 

WHEREAS, the Nassau County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) is 
authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New York, 
constituting Title I of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the Consolidated 
Laws of New York, as amended (the “Enabling Act”), and Chapter 674 of the 1975 Laws of New 
York, as amended, constituting Section 922 of said General Municipal Law (said Chapter and the 
Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Act”) to promote, develop, encourage 
and assist in the acquiring, constructing, reconstructing, improving, maintaining, equipping and 
furnishing of manufacturing, industrial and commercial facilities, among others, for the purpose of 
promoting, attracting and developing economically sound commerce and industry to advance the job 
opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of the State of New 
York, to improve their prosperity and standard of living, and to prevent unemployment and 
economic deterioration; and 

 
WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and empowered 

under the Act to acquire, construct, reconstruct and install one or more “projects” (as defined in the 
Act) or to cause said projects to be acquired, constructed, reconstructed and installed and to convey 
said projects or to lease said projects with the obligation to purchase; and 

 
WHEREAS, Cox & Company, Inc., a corporation organized and existing under the laws of 

the State of New York (the “Company”) and Plainview Steel, LLC, a limited liability company 
formed and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware (“Steel” and together with the 
Company, collectively, the “Applicants”), presented an application for financial assistance to the 
Agency (as supplemented and amended, the “Application”) to the Agency, which Application 
requested that the Agency consider undertaking a project (the “Original Project”) consisting of the 
following: (A)(1) the acquisition of a leasehold interest in an approximately 90,424 square foot 
portion (the “Original Premises”) of a 250,000 square foot building (the “Building”) on an 
approximately 15 acre parcel of land located 1650 Old Country Road, Plainview, Town of Oyster 
Bay, County of Nassau, New York (Section: 13; Block: 89; Lot: 60) (the “Land”), (2) the renovation 
of the Original Premises, and (3) the acquisition and installation therein and thereon of certain 
furniture, fixtures, machinery and equipment (the “Equipment”), all of the foregoing to constitute a 
manufacturing facility for use by the Company as its sole manufacturing location for the production 
of de-icing equipment for the transportation and aerospace industry (collectively, the “Project 
Facility”); (B) the granting of certain “financial assistance” (within the meaning of Section 854(14) 
of the General Municipal Law) with respect to the foregoing, including potential exemptions or 
partial exemptions from sales and use taxes and real property taxes (but not including special 
assessments and ad valorem levies) (the “Financial Assistance”); and (C) the lease (with an 
obligation to purchase), license or sale of the Project Facility to the Applicants or such other entity as 
may be designated by the Applicants and agreed upon by the Agency; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Agency appointed the Company as agent of the Agency to undertake the 



acquisition, renovation, installation and equipping of the Project Facility and the Agency has 
subleased the Project Facility to the Company, all pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth in 
the Sublease Agreement dated as of November 1, 2008 between the Company and the Agency (as 
amended to date, the “Lease”), and the other Transaction Documents (as defined in the Lease); and 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to a notification and consent request letter dated April 22, 2025 from 
counsel to the Company (the “Consent Request”),  the Company requested that the Agency consent 
to the transfer of 100% of the share of the Company held by the Company’s sole shareholder, TI-
Trust, Inc., solely in its capacity as trustee of the Cox & Company Employee Stock Ownership Trust 
(the “Transferor”), to Hutchinson Corporation, a Michigan corporation (the “Transferee”) and to the 
amendment of the Lease and the other Transaction Documents to effectuate such transfer 
(collectively, the “Transfer Transaction”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, no additional Financial Assistance is being requested by the Company with 
respect to the Transfer Transaction and, therefore, no public hearing of the Agency is required 
pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Agency is willing to consent to the Company’s requests, subject to the terms 
and conditions set forth in this Resolution; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE NASSAU 
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall have the 
meanings given to them in the Lease. 
 

Section 2.    The Agency hereby determines that the proposed action is a Type II Action 
pursuant to Article 8 of the New York Environmental Conservation Law (including the regulations 
thereunder, “SEQRA”) involving “continuing agency administration” which does not involve “new 
programs or major reordering of priorities that may affect the environment” (6 NYCRR Section 
6.17.5(c)(26)), and therefore no findings or determination of significance are required under 
SEQRA. 

 
Section 3. The Agency hereby ratifies, confirms and approves all actions heretofore 

taken by the CEO/Executive Director and the staff of the Agency with respect to the matters 
contemplated by this Resolution, including, without limitation, those actions required to ensure full 
compliance with the requirements of the Act, SEQRA and all other Applicable Laws that relate 
thereto. 
 

Section 4. No additional Financial Assistance is being requested by the Company with 
respect to the Transfer Transaction and, therefore, no public hearing of the Agency is required 
pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act. 

 
Section 5. The Agency has considered the requests made by the Company and hereby 

finds and determines that the requested consent will promote the job opportunities, health, general 
prosperity and economic welfare of the inhabitants of Nassau County, New York, and improve their 



standard of living, and thereby serve the public purposes of the Act. 
 
Section 6. Based on the recitals set forth above and on the facts and information obtained 

by the staff of the Agency and reported to and reviewed by the members of the Agency at this 
meeting, the Agency hereby determines that it has reviewed and assessed all material information 
necessary to afford a reasonable basis for the Agency to make the determinations set forth herein. 

 
Section 7.  The Agency hereby determines that the Agency has fully complied with the 

requirements of the Act, SEQRA and all other Applicable Laws that relate to the Transfer 
Transaction. 

 
Section 8. The Agency is hereby authorized to proceed with the Transfer Transaction as 

set forth in the Consent Request, provided that the Company shall enter into amendments to the 
Lease and the other Transaction Documents as may be required to effectuate such transaction. 

 
Section 9. The Chair, Vice Chair, CEO/Executive Director and Administrative Director 

of the Agency, acting individually or jointly, are each hereby authorized to execute, acknowledge 
and deliver any documents, instruments or agreements he or she deems necessary or advisable to 
accomplish the purposes of this Resolution.  The execution and delivery of any such document, 
instrument or agreement by any one of said officers shall be conclusive evidence of due 
authorization and approval.  
 

Section 10. The authorizations set forth in this Resolution are subject to the condition that 
the Company shall pay the Agency’s consent fee in the amount of $28,080 and shall reimburse the 
Agency for all costs and expenses incurred by or payable to the Agency in connection with the 
transactions contemplated herein, including, without limitation, all attorneys’ fees and disbursements 
incurred by the Agency with respect hereto. 

 
Section 11. The Agency hereby authorizes the Chair, Vice Chair, CEO/Executive Director 

and Administrative Director of the Agency, acting individually or jointly, to approve modifications 
to the terms approved hereby which are not inconsistent with the intent and substance of this 
Resolution, such approval to be evidenced by the execution by any one of said officers of the 
documents, instruments or agreements containing such modifications. 

 
Section 12. Notwithstanding any provision of this Resolution, the Lease or any other 

Transaction Document, the Agency’s consent herein does not and shall not be construed to mean that 
there are no defaults or events of default under the Lease or any other Transaction Document or that 
any such defaults or events of default have been or shall be waived by the Agency. 

 
Section 13. The Chair, Vice Chair, CEO/Executive Director and Administrative Director 

of the Agency, acting individually or jointly, are hereby authorized and directed to distribute copies 
of this Resolution to the Company and such other parties as any such officer may determine. 
 

Section 14. This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 
 
 



 
The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a 

vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 
 
  William H. Rockensies VOTING   

John Coumatos  VOTING   
Raymond Pinto  VOTING 

  Reginald A. Spinello  VOTING 
  Marco Troiano  VOTING 
  Marissa Brown  VOTING   
  Joseph Manzella  VOTING   
  
The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared duly ______. 
 



 
STATE OF NEW YORK  ) 

) SS.: 
COUNTY OF NASSAU  ) 

We, the undersigned [Vice] Chair and [Assistant] Secretary of the Nassau County 
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), do hereby certify that we have compared the 
foregoing extract of the minutes of the meeting of the members of the Agency, including the 
Resolution contained therein, held on May 15, 2025 with the original thereof on file in our office, 
and that the same is a true and correct copy of said original and of such Resolution set forth therein 
and of the whole of said original so far as the same relates to the subject matters therein referred to. 

WE FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of said 
meeting; (B) said meeting was in all respects duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the Public 
Officers Law (the “Open Meetings Law”), said meeting was open to the general public, and due 
notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such Open 
Meetings Law; (D) there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present throughout said 
meeting; and (E) the meeting was recorded and the recording has been or will be posted on the 
public website of the Agency pursuant to the Open Meetings Law. 

WE FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached Resolution is in 
full force and effect and has not been amended, repealed or rescinded. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our respective hands and affixed the 
seal of the Agency this _______ day of May, 2025. 

 

___________________________ 
[Assistant] Secretary 

 

___________________________ 
[Vice] Chair 

(SEAL) 

 
 
 

 



ENGEL BURMAN SENIOR HOUSING AT UNIONDALE LLC 
- Consent Resolution 

A regular meeting of the Nassau County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) 
was convened in public session at the Theodore Roosevelt Executive & Legislative Building, 
Legislative Chambers, 1550 Franklin Avenue, Mineola, Nassau County, New York, on May 15, 
2025, at 6:45 p.m., local time. 

The meeting was called to order by the Chair, upon roll being called, the following 
members of the Agency were:  

PRESENT: 

William H. Rockensies Chair (present but not participating) 
John Coumatos Treasurer  
Raymond Pinto Secretary/Asst. Treasurer 
Marissa Brown Asst. Secretary 
Reginald A. Spinello Member  
Marco Troiano Member 
Joseph Manzella Member 
 

NOT PRESENT: 

 
 

THE FOLLOWING ADDITIONAL PERSONS WERE PRESENT: 
 

Sheldon L. Shrenkel Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director 
Anne LaMorte  Chief Financial Officer 
Colleen Pereira Administrative Director 
Stephanie Alfano Temporary Administrative Assistant 
Anthony Marano Agency Counsel 
Paul O’Brien Bond/Transaction Counsel 
 

The attached resolution no. 2025-__ was offered by ____, seconded by _____.   

.   

 

 

  



Resolution No. 2025 - __ 

RESOLUTION TAKING OFFICIAL ACTION TOWARD AND APPROVING 
CERTAIN MATTERS IN CONNECTION WITH A CERTAIN PROJECT 

FOR ENGEL BURMAN SENIOR HOUSING AT UNIONDALE LLC 

WHEREAS, the Nassau County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) is 
authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New York, 
constituting Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the Consolidated 
Laws of New York, as amended (the “Enabling Act”), and Chapter 674 of the 1975 Laws of New 
York, as amended, constituting Section 922 of said General Municipal Law (said Chapter and the 
Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Act”) to promote, develop, 
encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing, reconstructing, improving, maintaining, 
equipping and furnishing of manufacturing, industrial and commercial facilities, among others, for 
the purpose of promoting, attracting and developing economically sound commerce and industry 
to advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of 
the State of New York, to improve their prosperity and standard of living, and to prevent 
unemployment and economic deterioration; and 

WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and empowered 
under the Act to acquire, construct, reconstruct and install one or more “projects” (as defined in 
the Act) or to cause said projects to be acquired, constructed, reconstructed and installed and to 
convey said projects or to lease said projects with the obligation to purchase; and 

WHEREAS, ENGEL BURMAN SENIOR HOUSING AT UNIONDALE LLC, a limited 
liability company organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York (the “Applicant”) 
presented an application for financial assistance (the “Application”) to the Agency, which Application 
requests that the Agency consider undertaking a project (the “Project”) consisting of the following: 
(A)(1) the acquisition of an interest in an approximately 8.16-acre parcel of land located at 875 
Jerusalem Avenue, Uniondale, Town of Hempstead, Nassau County, New York (Section: 50; 
Block: G; Lot: p/o 277, p/o 278) (the “Land”), (2) the construction of ten (10) buildings 
aggregating approximately 210,500 square feet, containing up to 192 residential rental units, at 
least ten percent (10%) of which units shall be affordable units, together with a clubhouse 
(collectively, the “Building”) on the Land, together with related improvements to the Land, and 
(3) the acquisition of certain furniture, fixtures, machinery and equipment necessary for the 
completion thereof (the “Equipment”), all of the foregoing for use by the Company as a residential 
real estate development for residents aged 55 and older (collectively, the “Project Facility”); (B) 
the granting of certain “financial assistance” (within the meaning of Section 854(14) of the General 
Municipal Law) with respect to the foregoing; and (C) the lease (with an obligation to purchase), 
license or sale of the Project Facility to the Company or such other entity as may be designated by 
the Company and agreed upon by the Agency; and 

WHEREAS, by resolution adopted by the members of the Agency on December 19, 2017 
(the “Authorizing Resolution”), the Agency determined to proceed with the Project, to grant the 
Financial Assistance and to enter into the “straight lease transaction” (as such quoted term is 
defined in the Act) contemplated by the Lease Agreement (as hereinafter defined) and the other 
Transaction Documents (as defined in the Lease Agreement); and 



WHEREAS, the Agency appointed the Applicant as agent of the Agency to undertake the 
acquisition, construction, installation and equipping of the Project Facility and subleased the 
Project Facility to the Applicant, and the Applicant as agent of the Agency has undertaken the 
acquisition, construction, installation and equipping of the Project Facility and has subleased the 
Project Facility from the Agency, all pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth in that certain 
Sublease Agreement (Uniform Project Agreement) dated as of December 1, 2018 between the 
Agency and the Applicant (the “Lease Agreement”) and in the other Transaction Documents (as 
defined in the Lease Agreement); and 

WHEREAS, Engel Burman Senior Housing at Uniondale Member LLC (the “Member”) 
is the sole member of the Applicant and HSRE-EB XIX, LLC (“HSRE-EB”), which is a joint 
venture between EB at Uniondale CA LLC (“EB”) and HSRE-EB XIXA, LLC, is the sole member 
of the Member; and 

  WHEREAS, pursuant to a notification and consent request letter from counsel to the 
Applicant dated April 9, 2025 (the “Consent Request”), the Applicant requested that the Agency 
consent to the transfer by HSRE-EB of its membership interests in the Member to B2K at 
Uniondale LLC (“B2K”), which is an affiliate of EB, and the amendment of the Lease Agreement 
and the other Transaction Documents required to effectuate such transfer (collectively, the 
“Transfer Transaction”); and 

 WHEREAS, by resolution adopted by the members of the Agency on April 22, 2025, the 
Agency approved the Transfer Transaction; and  

 WHEREAS, pursuant to a notification and consent request letter from counsel to the 
Applicant dated May 2, 2025 (the “Supplemental Consent Request”), the Applicant has requested 
that the Agency consent to the change of the name of the Applicant to B2K Senior Housing at 
Uniondale LLC, consent to the change of the name of the Member to B2K Senior Housing at 
Uniondale Member LLC, and the amendment of the Lease Agreement and the other Transaction 
Documents required to effectuate such transfer (collectively, the “Name Change Transaction”); 
and 

WHEREAS, no additional Financial Assistance is being requested by the Applicant with 
respect to the Name Change Transaction and, therefore, no public hearing of the Agency is 
required pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency is willing to consent to such request, subject to the terms of this 
Resolution; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE NASSAU 
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1. Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall have the 

meanings given to them in the Lease Agreement. 

Section 2. The Agency hereby ratifies, confirms and approves actions heretofore taken 
by the CEO/Executive Director and the staff of the Agency with respect to the matters 



contemplated by this Resolution, including, without limitation, those actions required to ensure 
full compliance with the requirements of the Act, Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation 
Law (the “SEQR Act”) and the regulations adopted pursuant thereto (the “Regulations” and 
together with the SEQR Act, collectively, “SEQRA”), and all other Applicable Laws that relate 
thereto. 

Section 3. The Agency determines that the request for consent with respect to a 
previously approved and unchanged Project is a Type II Action pursuant to SEQRA involving 
“continuing agency administration” which does not involve “new programs or major reordering of 
priorities that may affect the environment” (6 NYCRR §617.5(c)(20)) and therefore no Findings 
or determination of significance are required under SEQRA. 

Section 4. No additional Financial Assistance is being requested by the Applicant with 
respect to the Name Change Transaction, and, therefore, no public hearing of the Agency is 
required pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act. 

Section 5. The Agency hereby determines that the Agency has fully complied with the 
requirements of the Act, SEQRA and all other Applicable Laws that relate to the Name Change 
Transaction.   

Section 6. The Agency hereby consents to the Name Change Transaction, subject to 
the provisions of this Resolution. 

Section 7. The execution and delivery of the documents, instruments and agreements 
required to effectuate the Name Change Transaction (collectively, the “Amendment Documents”), 
being substantially in the forms used for prior similar transactions, are hereby authorized and 
approved.  The Acting Chairman, Vice Chairman, CEO/Executive Director and Administrative 
Director of the Agency are each hereby authorized, acting individually or jointly, to execute, 
acknowledge and deliver the Amendment Documents.  The execution and delivery of the 
Amendment Documents by any one of said officers shall be conclusive evidence of due 
authorization and approval. 

Section 8. The Acting Chairman, Vice Chairman, CEO/Executive Director and 
Administrative Director of the Agency are each hereby designated an Authorized Representative 
of the Agency and each of them is hereby authorized and directed, acting individually or jointly, 
to execute and deliver any and all consents, agreements, amendments, papers, instruments, 
opinions, certificates, affidavits and other documents required in connection with the Amendment 
Documents (collectively, the “Consent Documents”), and to do and cause to be done any and all 
acts and things necessary or proper for carrying out this Resolution, including, without limitation, 
taking any necessary action to obtain consent of any other person or party necessary with respect 
to execution, delivery and approval of the Consent Documents. The execution and delivery of the 
Consent Documents by any one of said officers shall be conclusive evidence of due authorization 
and approval. 

Section 9. The authorizations set forth in this Resolution are subject to the conditions 
that the Applicant shall pay the Agency’s consent and amendment fee in the amount of $750 and 
shall reimburse the Agency for all actual costs and expenses incurred by the Agency in connection 



with the transactions contemplated herein, including, without limitation, all reasonable attorneys’ 
fees and disbursements incurred by the Agency, including without limitation, the fees and expenses 
of Special Counsel, Phillips Lytle LLP. 

Section 10. All covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Agency 
contained in this Resolution, the Amendment Documents and the Consent Documents shall be 
deemed to be the covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Agency to the full 
extent authorized or permitted by law, and such covenants, stipulations, obligations and 
agreements shall be binding upon the Agency and its successors from time to time; provided, 
however, that no covenants, stipulations, obligations or agreements of the Agency contained in 
this Resolution, any Amendment Document or any Consent Document shall give rise to any 
pecuniary liability of the Agency or a charge against its general credit or shall obligate the Agency 
in any way except to the extent that the same can be paid or recovered from the Project Facility or 
the sale or liquidation of the Project Facility or revenues therefrom. 

No covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement herein contained or contained in any 
Amendment Document or any Consent Document shall be deemed to be a covenant, stipulation, 
obligation or agreement of any member, officer, agent or employee of the Agency in his or her 
individual capacity and neither the members of the Agency nor any officer executing any 
Amendment Document or any Consent Document shall be liable personally on the Amendment 
Documents or the Consent Documents or be subject to any personal liability or accountability by 
reason of the issuance thereof. 

Section 11. The Acting Chairman and CEO/Executive Director of the Agency are each 
hereby authorized to approve modifications to the terms approved herein which are not 
inconsistent with the intent and substance of this Resolution, such approval to be evidenced by the 
execution by any one of such officers of the Amendment Documents and/or the Consent 
Documents containing such modifications. 

Section 12. Notwithstanding any provision in the Lease Agreement or any other 
Transaction Document to the contrary, the Agency’s consent does not and shall not be construed 
to mean that there are no defaults or events of default under the Lease Agreement or any other  
Transaction Document or that any such defaults or events of default have been or shall be waived 
by the Agency. 

Section 13. The Acting Chairman, Vice Chairman, CEO/Executive Director and 
Administrative Director of the Agency, acting individually or jointly, are hereby authorized and 
directed to distribute copies of this Resolution to the Applicant and such other parties as any such 
officer may determine. 

Section 14. This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 

  



The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a 
vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 
 
  William H. Rockensies RECUSING 

John Coumatos  VOTING   
Raymond Pinto  VOTING 
Marissa Brown  VOTING   

 Reginald A. Spinello  VOTING   
  Marco Troiano  VOTING 
  Joseph Manzella  VOTING   
  
The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared duly _____. 
 
  



STATE OF NEW YORK 
) SS.: 

COUNTY OF NASSAU 

We, the undersigned [Acting/Vice] Chair and [Assistant] Secretary of the Nassau 
County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), do hereby certify that we have 
compared the foregoing extract of the minutes of the meeting of the members of the Agency, 
including the Resolution contained therein, held on May 15, 2025 with the original thereof on 
file in our office, and that the same is a true and correct copy of said original and of such 
Resolution set forth therein and of the whole of said original so far as the same relates to the 
subject matters therein referred to. 

WE FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of 
said meeting; (B) said meeting was in all respects duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the 
Public Officers Law (the “Open Meetings Law”), said meeting was open to the general public, 
and due notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such 
Open Meetings Law; (D) there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present throughout 
said meeting; and (E) the meeting was recorded and the recording has been or will be posted on 
the public website of the Agency pursuant to the Open Meetings Law. 

WE FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached Resolution is in 
full force and effect and has not been amended, repealed or rescinded. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our respective hands and affixed 
the seal of the Agency this _______ day of May, 2025. 

 

___________________________ 
[Assistant] Secretary 

 

___________________________ 
[Acting/Vice] Chair 

(SEAL) 

 
 

 

 



Lunar Module Park, LLC -  Amendment Resolution 
 

A regular meeting of the Nassau County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) 
was convened in public session at the Theodore Roosevelt Executive & Legislative Building, 
Legislative Chambers, 1550 Franklin Avenue, Mineola, Nassau County, New York, on May 15, 
2025, at 6:45 p.m., local time. 

The meeting was called to order by the Chair, upon roll being called, the following 
members of the Agency were:  

PRESENT: 

William H. Rockensies Chair  
John Coumatos Treasurer  
Raymond Pinto Secretary/Asst. Treasurer 
Marissa Brown Asst. Secretary 
Reginald A. Spinello Member  
Marco Troiano Member 
Joseph Manzella Member 
 

NOT PRESENT: 

 
 

THE FOLLOWING ADDITIONAL PERSONS WERE PRESENT: 
 

Sheldon L. Shrenkel Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director 
Anne LaMorte  Chief Financial Officer 
Colleen Pereira Administrative Director 
Stephanie Alfano Temporary Administrative Assistant 
Anthony Marano Agency Counsel 
Paul O’Brien Bond/Transaction Counsel 
 

The attached resolution no. 2025-__ was offered by ____, seconded by _____.   

 

    



Resolution No. 2025- __ 
 

RESOLUTION TAKING ACTION WITH RESPECT TO A CERTAIN 
PROJECT FOR LUNAR MODULE PARK, LLC, AND OTHER MATTERS IN 

CONNECTION THEREWITH 
 

WHEREAS, the Nassau County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) is 
authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New York, 
constituting Title I of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the Consolidated 
Laws of New York, as amended (the “Enabling Act”), and Chapter 674 of the 1975 Laws of New 
York, as amended, constituting Section 922 of said General Municipal Law (said Chapter and the 
Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Act”) to promote, develop, encourage 
and assist in the acquiring, constructing, reconstructing, improving, maintaining, equipping and 
furnishing of manufacturing, industrial and commercial facilities, among others, for the purpose of 
promoting, attracting and developing economically sound commerce and industry to advance the job 
opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of the State of New 
York, to improve their prosperity and standard of living, and to prevent unemployment and 
economic deterioration; and 

 
WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and empowered 

under the Act to acquire, construct, reconstruct and install one or more “projects” (as defined in the 
Act) or to cause said projects to be acquired, constructed, reconstructed and installed and to convey 
said projects or to lease said projects with the obligation to purchase; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Agency and LUNAR MODULE PARK, LLC (the “Applicant”), a limited 

liability company organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, entered into a 
“straight lease” transaction in connection with a project and the Agency provided the Original 
Financial Assistance (as such term is defined below) in connection therewith that, as authorized by 
the Agency’s Resolution 2007-40 and Resolution 2009-14, consisted of the following: (A) (1) 
acquisition of an interest in an approximately 29 acre parcel of land located at 500 Grumman Road 
West, Bethpage, Town of Oyster Bay, County of Nassau, New York (the “Land”), (2) the renovation 
of an approximately 660,000 square foot building on the Land (the “Building”), together with related 
improvements to the Land, and (3) the acquisition and installation therein and thereon of certain 
furniture, fixtures, machinery and equipment (the “Original Equipment” and together with the Land 
and the Building, but excluding the LIFT Unit, as such term is hereafter defined, collectively, the 
“Original Project Facility”); (B) the granting of certain “financial assistance” (within the meaning of 
Section 854(14) of the Act) with respect to the foregoing, including potential additional exemptions 
or partial exemptions from sales and use taxes, mortgage recording taxes and real property taxes (but 
not including special assessments and ad valorem levies) (collectively, the “Original Financial 
Assistance”); (C) the lease (with an obligation to purchase) or sale of the Original Project Facility to 
the Applicant, or such other entity as may be designated by the Applicant and agreed upon by the 
Agency; and (D) the sublease of the Original Project Facility to the Applicant or such other 
entity(ies) as maybe designated by the Applicant and agreed upon by the Agency; and 

WHEREAS, the LIFT Unit, as such term is defined in that certain Project Conversion 
Agreement between the Applicant and the Agency, dated as of July 1, 2007 (the “Conversion 



Agreement”), comprising a portion of the Building and being a separate condominium unit, was sold 
by the Applicant to Long Island Forum for Technology; and 

WHEREAS, in connection with the Original Project Facility the Agency entered into a 
straight-lease with the Applicant pursuant to a Lease Agreement dated as of July 1, 2007 (as 
amended from time to time, the “Lease”) and granted the Original Financial Assistance; and 

WHEREAS, on or about December 19, 2012, the Applicant presented an application for 
additional “financial assistance” (within the meaning of Section 854(14) of the Act), including 
potential additional exemptions or partial exemptions from real property taxes and an exemption 
from sales and uses taxes (collectively, the “2012 Additional Financial Assistance”) in connection 
with further improvements of the Original Project Facility to enhance the use and sustainability of 
the Original Project Facility as a film studio; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency granted the 2012 Additional Financial Assistance; and 

WHEREAS, the Applicant presented an application for additional financial assistance (the 
“Application”) to the Agency, which Application requested that the Agency consider undertaking a 
project (the “2020 Project”) consisting, inter alia, of the following: (A) retention of an interest in the 
Land, (B) Agency consent to allow portions of the Land and the Building (collectively, the “2020 
Project Facility”) to continue to be utilized for (1) exhibition and event space when not utilized for 
Film Production operations, (2) license, on a month-to-month or 90 day termination basis, certain 
portions of the parking lot for temporary storage of auto dealer new vehicle inventory and (3) the 
tenancy of B&S Lighting and Furniture Inc. to occupy 40,000 square feet of the designated Non-
Production Space in the Building for the storage of furniture/lighting inventory; (C) the granting of 
certain additional “financial assistance” (within the meaning of Section 854(14) of the Act) with 
respect to the foregoing, including potential exemptions or partial exemptions from mortgage 
recording taxes and real property taxes (but not including special assessments and ad valorem levies) 
(the “2020 Additional Financial Assistance”); and (D) the amendment of certain Transaction 
Documents (as defined in the Lease) in connection therewith; and 

WHEREAS, by resolution adopted by the members of the Agency on September 17, 2020, 
the Agency approved the 2020 Additional Financial Assistance; and 

WHEREAS, by letter and amended application documents, dated September 23, 2020, the 
Applicant presented a request for an amendment (the “Amendment Application”) to the 2020 
Additional Financial Assistance (the “Amendment to the Additional Financial Assistance “) to the 
Agency, which Application requested that the Agency increase the approved amount of mortgage 
funds subject to mortgage recording tax exemption in the amount of $13,000,000.00, for a total 
maximum mortgage amount of $25,000,000.00; and 

WHEREAS, the Applicant received the 2020 Additional Financial Assistance, as amended 
by the Amendment Application, with respect to the 2020 Project Facility from the Agency; and 

WHERAS, the Agency, by resolution No. 2021 – 63, adopted an Environmental Pollution 
Mitigation Assistance Policy authorizing the provision of strategic financial assistance in the form of 
sales and/or use tax exemption and, if eligible, in additional forms of financial assistance, for 



qualifying environmental pollution mitigation and conservation projects that commit to provide for 
equipment, improvements, structures or facilities; and 

WHEREAS, by letter dated October 6, 2021, the Applicant requested (the “2021 
Application”) that the Agency consider undertaking a project (the “2021 Project”) consisting, inter 
alia, of the following: (A)(1) retention of an interest in the Land; (2) retention of an interest in the 
Building; and (3) the acquisition and construction of solar electric and battery system (the “New 
Equipment”) on the Land the Building; and (B) the granting of certain additional “financial 
assistance” (within the meaning of Section 854(14) of the Act) with respect to the foregoing, 
including potential exemptions or partial exemptions from sales and use tax for the cost of the 
acquisition and construction of the solar electric and battery system (the “2021 Financial 
Assistance”) (the “2021 Amended Request”); and 

WHEREAS, by resolution adopted by the members of the Agency on November 18, 2021 
(the “2021 Preliminary Inducement Resolution”), the Agency, following a review of the 2021 
Application, determined to take preliminary action toward the acquisition and straight leasing of the 
2021 Project for the Applicant and made a determination to proceed with the 2021 Project; and 

WHEREAS, by resolution adopted by the members of the Agency on December 16, 2021 
(the “2021 Resolution”), the Agency approved certain financial assistance for the benefit of the 
Applicant in connection with the 2021 Project consisting of: an exemption from sales and use taxes 
with respect to the New Equipment in an amount not to exceed $124,813.00 (the “2021 Financial 
Assistance”); and 

WHEREAS, by letter dated May 2, 2025 from counsel to the Applicant (the “Consent 
Request”), the Applicant proposed that (i) the Agency modify the permitted use provisions of the 
Lease to allow the Applicant to sub-sublease space at the Project Facility to third parties for 
industrial, warehouse and other commercial uses permitted by current zoning, and (ii) the Agency 
enter into amendments of the Lease and the other Transaction Documents to effectuate the foregoing 
(collectively, the “Amendment Transaction”); and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the New York Environmental Conservation Law, 

Chapter 43-B of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the “SEQR Act”) and the 
regulations adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental Conservation of the State 
of New York, being 6 N.Y.C.R.R. Part 617, et. seq., as amended (the “Regulations” and collectively 
with the SEQR Act, “SEQRA”), the Agency must satisfy the requirements contained in SEQRA 
prior to making a final determination whether to undertake the Amendment Transaction; and 

WHEREAS, prior to making a recommendation as to the potential environmental 
significance of the Amendment Transaction, the Agency reviewed the Consent Request and 
considered the list of activities that are Type I Actions outlined in Section 617.4 of the Regulations, 
the list of activities that are Type II Actions outlined in Section 617.5 of the Regulations, and the 
criteria for determining significance outlined in Section 617.7 of the Regulations; and 

 WHEREAS, 6 NYCRR 617.5(ak) of the Regulations states that a Type II action is an action 
or class of actions identified under 6 NYCRR 617.5 that have been determined not to have a 



significant impact on the environment or are otherwise precluded from environmental review under 
the SEQR Act; and 

 
 WHEREAS, 6 NYCRR 617.5(c)(18) provides that a Type II action not subject to further 

review under SEQRA includes the “reuse of a residential or commercial structure, … where the 
residential or commercial use is a permitted use under the applicable zoning law or ordinance, 
including permitted by special use permit, and the action does not meet or exceed any of the 
thresholds in section 617.4.” and  

WHEREAS, no additional Financial Assistance is being requested by the Applicant with 
respect to the Amendment Transaction and, therefore, no public hearing of the Agency is required 
pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act; and 
  

WHEREAS, the Agency is willing to consent to the Amendment Transaction, subject to the 
terms and conditions set forth in this Resolution; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE NASSAU 
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall have the 
meanings given to them in the Lease. 
 

Section 2.    The Agency hereby ratifies, confirms and approves all actions heretofore 
taken by the staff of the Agency with respect to the matters contemplated by this Resolution, 
including, without limitation, those actions required to ensure full compliance with the requirements 
of the Act,  SEQRA and all other Applicable Laws that relate thereto. 

 
Section 3.  The Agency determines that the Amendment Transaction is a Type II Action 

under SEQRA, precluded from further environmental review, because it constitutes a reuse of a 
commercial structure where the newly proposed commercial use is a permitted use under the 
applicable zoning law or ordinance, including permitted by special use permit, and the action does 
not meet or exceed any of the Type I  thresholds outlined in section 617.4,      
 

Section 4. No additional Financial Assistance is being requested by the Applicant with 
respect to the Consent Request, and, therefore, no public hearing of the Agency is required pursuant 
to Section 859-a of the Act. 

 
Section 5. The Agency hereby determines that the Agency has fully complied with the 

requirements of the Act, SEQRA and all other Applicable Laws that relate to the Consent Request. 
 
Section 6. Based on the recitals set forth above and on the facts and information obtained 

by the staff of the Agency and reported to and reviewed by the members of the Agency at this 
meeting, the Agency hereby determines that it has reviewed and assessed all material information 
necessary to afford a reasonable basis for the Agency to make the determinations set forth herein. 

 
Section 7. The Agency is hereby authorized to enter into the Amendment Transaction. 

 



Section 8. The Chair, Vice Chair, CEO/Executive Director and Administrative Director 
of the Agency, acting individually or jointly, are each hereby authorized to execute, acknowledge 
and deliver any documents, instruments or agreement he or she deems necessary or advisable to 
accomplish the purposes of this Resolution (collectively, the “Amendment Documents”).  The 
execution and delivery of any such Amendment Document by any one of said officers shall be 
conclusive evidence of due authorization and approval.  
 

Section 9. The authorizations set forth in this Resolution are further subject to the 
condition that the Applicant shall pay the Agency’s consent fee in the amount of $750 and reimburse 
the Agency for all costs and expenses incurred by the Agency in connection with the transactions 
contemplated herein, including, without limitation, the Agency’s consent and amendment fee and all 
reasonable attorneys’ fees and disbursements incurred by the Agency, including without limitation, 
the fees and expenses of Special Counsel, Phillips Lytle LLP. 

 
Section 10. All covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Agency 

contained in this Resolution and the Amendment Documents shall be deemed to be the covenants, 
stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Agency to the full extent authorized or permitted by 
law, and such covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements shall be binding upon the Agency 
and its successors from time to time; provided, however, that no covenants, stipulations, obligations 
or agreements of the Agency contained in this Resolution or any Amendment Document shall give 
rise to any pecuniary liability of the Agency or a charge against its general credit or shall obligate the 
Agency in any way except to the extent that the same can be paid or recovered from the Project 
Facility or the sale or liquidation of the Project Facility or revenues therefrom. 

No covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement herein contained or contained in any 
Amendment Document shall be deemed to be a covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement of 
any member, officer, agent or employee of the Agency in his or her individual capacity and 
neither the members of the Agency nor any officer executing any Amendment Document shall 
be liable personally on the Amendment Documents or be subject to any personal liability or 
accountability by reason of the issuance thereof. 

Section 11. The Agency hereby authorizes the Chair, Vice Chair, CEO/Executive Director 
and Administrative Director of the Agency, acting individually or jointly, to approve modifications 
to the terms approved hereby which are not inconsistent with the intent and substance of this 
Resolution, such approval to be evidenced by the execution by such officers of the documents, 
instruments or agreements containing such modifications. 

 
Section 12. The Chair, Vice Chair, CEO/Executive Director and Administrative Director 

of the Agency, acting individually or jointly, are hereby authorized and directed to distribute copies 
of this Resolution to the Applicant and such other parties as any such officer may determine. 
 

Section 13. This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 
 
 

 
The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a 

vote on roll call, which resulted as follows: 



 
  William H. Rockensies VOTING   

John Coumatos  VOTING   
Raymond Pinto  VOTING   

  Reginald A. Spinello  VOTING 
  Marco Troiano  VOTING 
  Marissa Brown  VOTING   
  Joseph Manzella  VOTING   
  
The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted. 
 



 
STATE OF NEW YORK  ) 

) SS.: 
COUNTY OF NASSAU  ) 

We, the undersigned [Vice] Chair and [Assistant] Secretary of the Nassau County 
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), do hereby certify that we have compared the 
foregoing extract of the minutes of the meeting of the members of the Agency, including the 
Resolution contained therein, held on May 15, 2025 with the original thereof on file in our office, 
and that the same is a true and correct copy of said original and of such Resolution set forth therein 
and of the whole of said original so far as the same relates to the subject matters therein referred to. 

WE FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of said 
meeting; (B) said meeting was in all respects duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the Public 
Officers Law (the “Open Meetings Law”), said meeting was open to the general public, and due 
notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such Open 
Meetings Law; (D) there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present throughout said 
meeting; and (E) the meeting was recorded and the recording has been or will be posted on the 
public website of the Agency pursuant to the Open Meetings Law. 

WE FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached Resolution is in 
full force and effect and has not been amended, repealed or rescinded. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our respective hands and affixed the 
seal of the Agency this _______ day of May, 2025. 

 

___________________________ 
[Assistant] Secretary 

 

___________________________ 
[Vice] Chair 

(SEAL) 

 
 
 

 



1 
 

Nassau County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) 
Board Meeting Minutes 

April 22, 2025 
6:45 PM 

 
I. Board Roll Call 
 
William Rockensies  Present 
John Coumatos  Present 
Reginald Spinello  Present 
Raymond Pinto  Not Present 
Marco Troiano  Not Present 
Marissa Brown  Present 
Joseph Manzella  Present 
 
Others Present: 
 
Sheldon L. Shrenkel  Chief Executive Officer / Executive Director 
Anne LaMorte   Chief Financial Officer 
Colleen Pereira   Administrative Director 
Stephanie Alfano  Temporary Administrative Assistant 
Paul O’Brien   Bond/Transactional Counsel 
Andrew Komaromi  Bond/Transactional Counsel 
 
II. Chair Report 

 
None. 
 

III. CEO Report 
 

None. 
 
IV. Public Comment Period 

 
No members of the public made any comments. 
 

V. Existing Business and Discussion 
 

A. Approval Resolutions 
 

i. FFII Long Island Owner LLC 
 
a.  SEQRA Resolution 
b. PILOT Deviation Resolution 
c. Approving Resolution 
 



2 
 

Applicant’s counsel, Dan Deegan of Forchelli Deegan Terrana LLP, described 
the history of the existing project and the bankruptcies that it has been through. 
Mr. Deegan stated that 82% of the units are now vacant and those residents 
who occupancy required licensing have been relocated.  Mr. Deegan stated 
that, if approved, and subject to bankruptcy court approval, the project would 
be operated as an independent-living senior housing facility. 
 
Chair Rockensies asked if any members of the Agency have any comments or 
questions.  Member Spinello asked about public comments relating to the 
existing owner.  Mr. Deegan responded that the Applicant is not related to 
the existing owner and that his understanding is that the existing owner is 
selling another facility in order to provide partial refunds of entrance fees 
to current occupants.   
 
Member Coumatos asked whether the building trades have been consulted. 
There followed a discussion between Member Coumatos and Mr. Deegan 
about the timing of the hiring of a general contractor and the outreach that 
the Applicant will make to the trades.  Member Coumatos expressed 
concern about the number of bankruptcies that have occurred.  Mr. Deegan 
responded that his client has experience “turning around” failed CCRC’s. 
 
Chair Rockensies asked Mr. Deegan about the parameters of the proposed 
PILOT.  Mr. Deegan explained the proposed terms. 
 
Member Manzella asked about the proposed 5% increases in rental rates.  
Mr. Deegan explained that this is related to the substantial services to be 
provided to tenants by the Applicant. 
 
Chair Rockensies asked if any members of the public have any comments.  
There were none. 
 
Transaction Counsel Andrew Komaromi described the resolutions being 
considered by the board.  Members Coumatos and Manzella stated that they 
would abstain from voting.  Further discussion was had and then a vote was 
taken. 
 
Member Brown moved to adopt the proposed SEQRA, PILOT Deviation 
and Approving Resolutions.  Chair Rockensies seconded the motion. The 
motion was approved by a vote of 4-0 with Member Manzella abstaining 
(Resolution Nos. 2025-15, 2025-16 and 2025-17). 

 
 

B. Preliminary Resolutions 
 
None 
 



3 
 

C. Discussion 

None 

D. Consent Resolutions 
 

i. Amsterdam House Continuing Care Retirement Community, Inc. 
 

Transaction Counsel Andrew Komaromi explained that a consent resolution 
is required in connection with the termination of the existing bond deal in 
order to effectuate the transactions contemplated for the FFII Long Island 
Owner LLC project. 
 
Member Brown moved to adopt the proposed Consent Resolution.  Chair 
Rockensies seconded the motion. The motion was approved by a vote of 4-
0 with Member Manzella abstaining (Resolution No. 2025-18). 

  ii. EB Senior Housing at Uniondale LLC. 

Chair Rockensies stated that he is recusing himself with respect to this 
matter and that he has filed a disclosure affidavit all to avoid any 
appearance of a conflict.  Member Spinello is Acting Chair with respect to 
the consideration of this matter. 

Applicant’s counsel Michael Webb of Farrell Fritz, P.C., explained that his 
client is requesting consent to an “upstream” transfer of membership 
interests in the existing JV owner of the Applicant.  

Transaction Counsel O’Brien asked Mr. Webb to clarify his comments.  Mr. 
Webb explained that Harrison Street Realty will be exiting the transaction 
and B2K principals will take over complete ownership. 

Acting Chair Spinello asked if there were any questions from board 
members or the public.  There were none. 
 
Acting Chair Spinello moved to adopt the proposed Consent Resolution.  
Member Manzella seconded the motion.  The motion was approved by a vote 
of 4-0 with Chair Rockensies not participating. (Resolution No. 2025-19). 

  iii. Sterling Green at Farmingdale LLC 

Applicant’s counsel, John Gordon of Forchelli Deegan Terrana LLP, 
explained that his client is in the process of converting the existing 
construction financing to permanent financing involving the Housing Trust 
Fund Corporation.  HTFC requires that the Agency sign certain mortgages, 
regulatory agreements, intercreditor agreements and amendments in order to 
effectuate the financing.  The Applicant is seeking the Agency’s consent to 
sign such documents in form satisfactory to the staff of the Agency. 



4 
 

Transaction Counsel Paul O’Brien asked Mr. Gordon to confirm that no 
additional financial assistance is being sought.  Mr. Gordon confirmed that. 

Chair Rockensies asked if there were any questions form the board members 
or the public.  There were none. 

Member Coumatos moved to adopt the proposed Consent Resolution.  
Member Manzella seconded the motion.  The motion was approved 
unanimously (Resolution No. 2025-20). 

VI. New Business 

 A. Preliminary Resolutions 

  i. The Bridge 

Chair Rockensies invited Dan Deegan of Forchelli Deegan Terrana LLP, 
counsel to the applicant, to introduce the project.  Mr. Deegan explained the 
location of the project (i.e., the former Taxi Stand parcel in Mineola) and 
stated that his client proposes to build a 9-story building consisting of 102 
residential condominium units and 10,000 square feet of event space.  Mr. 
Deegan stated that the Village of Mineola is in full support of the project. 

Mr. Deegan described the proposed financial assistance and stated that his 
client will be reaching out to the building trades. 

Chair Rockensies asked if any members of the board have comments or 
questions.  Member Spinello asked if the project will take 3 years to build and 
Mr. Deegan responded in the affirmative.  Member Spinello asked why there 
will be no workforce housing units and Mr. Deegan responded that this would 
be difficult to do in a condo building but that his client intends to supply such 
units at another location in Mineola to be determined.  Member Coumatos 
asked a question about affordability and Mr. Deegan responded. 

Member Manzella moved to adopt the proposed Preliminary Inducement 
Resolution.  Member Brown seconded the motion.  The motion was approved 
unanimously. (Resolution No. 2025-21) 

VII. Committee Reports 

None 

VIII. Other Business 

A. Minutes 
 

i. Approval of March 26, 2025 Minutes 
 



5 
 

Member Spinello moved to approve the draft March 26, 2025 meeting 
minutes. Chair Rockensies seconded the motion. The motion was approved 
unanimously.  

 
B. Other Resolutions 

None 
   
IX. Bills and Communications 
 
 None 
 
X. Treasurer’s Report 

 
Chair Rockensies asked CFO Anne LaMorte to give the March 2025 financial report.   

 
XI. Announcements 
 
 None 
 
XII.  Adjournment 

A motion to adjourn the board meeting was made by Member Manzella, which was seconded 
by Chair Rockensies The resolution was approved unanimously. The meeting ended at 7:42 
PM. 

 

 
[For additional information, please see a recording of the April 22, 2025 meeting of the board of the 
Nassau County Industrial Development Agency found at:  
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=3d2KGqJ1lKA] 
 
 
___________________________ 
William Rockensies 
Chair 
 
 
___________________________ 
Marissa Brown 
Asst. Secretary 
 

--END-- 



Resolution Authorizing A Payment Pursuant to the Employee Benefits Handbook 

A regular meeting of the Nassau County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) 
was convened in public session at the Theodore Roosevelt Executive & Legislative Building, 
Legislative Chambers, 1550 Franklin Avenue, Mineola, Nassau County, New York, on May 15, 
2025, at 6:45 p.m., local time. 

The meeting was called to order by the _____, upon roll being called, the following 
members of the Agency were:  

PRESENT: 

William H. Rockensies Chair 
Raymond Pinto  Secretary/Asst. Treasurer 
John Coumatos  Treasurer  
Marissa Brown  Asst. Secretary 
Reginald A. Spinello  Member 
Marco Troiano  Member 
Joseph Manzella  Member 

 

NOT PRESENT: 

 

 

 

THE FOLLOWING ADDITIONAL PERSONS WERE PRESENT: 
 

Sheldon L. Shrenkel Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director 
Anne LaMorte  Chief Financial Officer 
Colleen Pereira Administrative Director 
Stephanie Alfano Temporary Administrative Assistant 
Anthony Marano General Counsel 
Paul O’Brien Bond/Transaction Counsel 

 

The attached resolution no. 2025-__ was offered by _______, seconded by ________.  

  

 

 



 

Resolution No. 2025 - __ 

RESOLUTION OF THE NASSAU COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY AUTHORIZING A PAYMENT PURSUANT TO ITS 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS HANDBOOK 
 

WHEREAS, the Nassau County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) is 
authorized and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New York, 
constituting Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the Consolidated 
Laws of New York, as amended (the “Enabling Act”), and Chapter 674 of the 1975 Laws of New 
York, as amended, constituting Section 922 of said General Municipal Law (said Chapter and the 
Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Act”) to promote, develop, 
encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing, reconstructing, improving, maintaining, 
equipping and furnishing of manufacturing, industrial and commercial facilities, among others, for 
the purpose of promoting, attracting and developing economically sound commerce and industry 
to advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of 
the State of New York, to improve their prosperity and standard of living, and to prevent 
unemployment and economic deterioration; and 

WHEREAS, by resolution of the members of the Agency, the Agency adopted an 
Employee Benefits Handbook, first effective on or as of October 1, 2010 and as subsequently 
amended (hereinafter, the “Employee Benefits Handbook”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Employee Benefits Handbook provides that, unless terminated for cause, 
upon termination of service an Officer or Employee of the Agency (as each term is defined or 
otherwise used in the Employee Benefits Handbook) shall be entitled to receive cash payment for 
accumulated vacation time and unused sick leave, which payment amount is to be computed 
pursuant to a specific methodology described in the Employee Benefits Handbook; and 
 
 WHEREAS, William Brunner, the Agency’s then Chief Marketing Officer, left the 
Agency’s employ effective May 9, 2025, and is entitled to payment for accumulated vacation time 
and unused sick leave in accordance with the Employee Benefits Handbook;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE NASSAU 
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. The Agency hereby determines that the proposed action is a Type II Action 
pursuant to Article 8 of the New York Environmental Conservation Law (including the regulations 
thereunder, “SEQRA”) involving “continuing agency administration” which does not involve 
“new programs or major reordering of priorities that may affect the environment” (6 NYCRR 
Section 617.5(c)(26)) and therefore no findings or determination of significance are required under 
SEQRA. 



Section 2. The members of the Agency authorize a payment to William Brunner in the 
sum of $7,595.00, for accumulated vacation time and unused sick leave, in accordance with the 
Employee Benefits Handbook. 

Section 3. This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 

 

 

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call, 
which resulted as follows: 

William H. Rockensies  VOTING  
John Coumatos   VOTING  
Reginald A. Spinello  VOTING 
Raymond Pinto   VOTING  
Marco Troiano   VOTING 
Marissa Brown   VOTING  
Joseph Manzella  VOTING 

The foregoing Resolution was thereupon declared duly ______. 

 

 

  



STATE OF NEW YORK 
) SS.: 

COUNTY OF NASSAU 

We, the undersigned [Vice] Chair and [Assistant] Secretary of the Nassau County 
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), do hereby certify that we have compared the 
foregoing extract of the minutes of the meeting of the members of the Agency, including the 
Resolution contained therein, held on May 15, 2025 with the original thereof on file in our office, 
and that the same is a true and correct copy of said original and of such Resolution set forth 
therein and of the whole of said original so far as the same relates to the subject matters therein 
referred to. 

WE FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of 
said meeting; (B) said meeting was in all respects duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the 
Public Officers Law (the “Open Meetings Law”), said meeting was open to the general public, 
and due notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such 
Open Meetings Law; (D) there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present throughout 
said meeting; and (E) the meeting was recorded and the recording has been or will be posted on 
the public website of the Agency pursuant to the Open Meetings Law. 

WE FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached Resolution is in 
full force and effect and has not been amended, repealed or rescinded. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our respective hands and affixed 
the seal of the Agency this _______ day of May, 2025. 

 

___________________________ 
[Assistant] Secretary 

 

___________________________ 
[Vice] Chair 

(SEAL) 

 
 

Doc #1882472.1 


	Agency-Agenda-5.15.25
	PRELIM RESOS (NCIDA_EB JERICHO_2025)(1879997.1)-C
	CONSENT RESOS (NCIDA_COX_CHANGE OWNER)(1878971.1)-C
	CONSENT RESOS (NCIDA_EB SENIOR UNIONDALE_CHANGE NAME)(1879157.1)-C
	Section 1. Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings given to them in the Lease Agreement.
	Section 2. The Agency hereby ratifies, confirms and approves actions heretofore taken by the CEO/Executive Director and the staff of the Agency with respect to the matters contemplated by this Resolution, including, without limitation, those actions r...
	Section 3. The Agency determines that the request for consent with respect to a previously approved and unchanged Project is a Type II Action pursuant to SEQRA involving “continuing agency administration” which does not involve “new programs or major ...
	Section 4. No additional Financial Assistance is being requested by the Applicant with respect to the Name Change Transaction, and, therefore, no public hearing of the Agency is required pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act.
	Section 5. The Agency hereby determines that the Agency has fully complied with the requirements of the Act, SEQRA and all other Applicable Laws that relate to the Name Change Transaction.
	Section 6. The Agency hereby consents to the Name Change Transaction, subject to the provisions of this Resolution.
	Section 7. The execution and delivery of the documents, instruments and agreements required to effectuate the Name Change Transaction (collectively, the “Amendment Documents”), being substantially in the forms used for prior similar transactions, are ...
	Section 8. The Acting Chairman, Vice Chairman, CEO/Executive Director and Administrative Director of the Agency are each hereby designated an Authorized Representative of the Agency and each of them is hereby authorized and directed, acting individual...
	Section 9. The authorizations set forth in this Resolution are subject to the conditions that the Applicant shall pay the Agency’s consent and amendment fee in the amount of $750 and shall reimburse the Agency for all actual costs and expenses incurre...
	Section 10. All covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Agency contained in this Resolution, the Amendment Documents and the Consent Documents shall be deemed to be the covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Agen...
	Section 11. The Acting Chairman and CEO/Executive Director of the Agency are each hereby authorized to approve modifications to the terms approved herein which are not inconsistent with the intent and substance of this Resolution, such approval to be ...
	Section 12. Notwithstanding any provision in the Lease Agreement or any other Transaction Document to the contrary, the Agency’s consent does not and shall not be construed to mean that there are no defaults or events of default under the Lease Agreem...
	Section 13. The Acting Chairman, Vice Chairman, CEO/Executive Director and Administrative Director of the Agency, acting individually or jointly, are hereby authorized and directed to distribute copies of this Resolution to the Applicant and such othe...
	Section 14. This Resolution shall take effect immediately.

	CONSENT RESOS (NCIDA_LUNAR_CHANGE USE)(1879626.2)-C
	Section 10. All covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Agency contained in this Resolution and the Amendment Documents shall be deemed to be the covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Agency to the full extent a...

	2025.04.22 IDA Meeting Minutes DRAFT
	AGENCY RESOS (NCIDA_2025 BRUNNER PAYOUT)(1882472.1)-C.pdf
	Section 1. The Agency hereby determines that the proposed action is a Type II Action pursuant to Article 8 of the New York Environmental Conservation Law (including the regulations thereunder, “SEQRA”) involving “continuing agency administration” whic...
	Section 2. The members of the Agency authorize a payment to William Brunner in the sum of $7,595.00, for accumulated vacation time and unused sick leave, in accordance with the Employee Benefits Handbook.
	Section 3. This Resolution shall take effect immediately.




